
Note:  Anyone wishing to speak at any Planning Commission meeting is encouraged to do so.  If you wish to speak, 
please rise and, after you have been recognized by the Chair, give your name and complete address for the record.  
You will then be allowed to speak.  Please note that the public testimony may be limited by the Chair and normally is 
not allowed after the Public Hearing is closed. 
 

 

  
  
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the Community Development office at 541-488-5305 (TTY phone is 1-800-735-2900).  Notification 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 
ADA Title 1).   
 

ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

October 9, 2007 
AGENDA 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 7:OO PM, Civic Center, 1175 E. Main Street 
 
II. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
III. APPROVE AGENDA 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 August 14, 2007 Hearings Board Meeting 
 September 11, 2007 Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

  
V. PUBLIC FORUM 
 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

A.  PLANNING ACTION:  PA-2007-00250 
SUBJECT PROPERTY: 281 Fourth St 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Aaron Glover 
DESCRIPTION:  Request for a Conditional Use Permit for a theater use and a Type II Variance to 
parking for a property located at 281 Fourth St. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION:  
Employment ZONING: E-1; ASSESSOR’S MAP #: 39 1E 09BA; TAX LOT: 101 
 
Public hearing and record have been closed. 

 
VII. TYPE II PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A.   PLANNING ACTION:  PA-2007-00980 
SUBJECT PROPERTY: Westwood/Strawberry 391E 08BD TaxLot #102 
OWNER/APPLICANT: City of Ashland 

 
VIII. TYPE III PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A.  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
DESCRIPTION:  Amendment to the Ashland Comprehensive Plan amending the Economic 
Chapter and adopting an Economic Opportunities Analysis as a technical appendix to the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
IX. OTHER 
 
 A. Adoption of Findings – PA 2007-00250 – 281 Fourth St 
 B. Adoption of Findings – PA 2007-00980 – Westwood/Strawberry 
 C. ALUO Amendments 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION 
HEARINGS BOARD MINUTES 

AUGUST 14, 2007 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 1:30 P.M., Civic Center, 1175 East Main Street 
 
Members present: Pam Marsh, Dave Dotterrer, Michael Dawkins 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   Hearings Board Minutes of July 10,  2007 to be approved at 

the Regular 
Planning Commission Meeting. 
    
III. TYPE I PLANNING ACTIONS 
 
A. PLANNING ACTION:  2007-01209 
SUBJECT PROPERTY: 1160 Bellview   
OWNER/APPLICANT:   Jack & Mary Kyman / Richard Wagner 
DESCRIPTION:   A request for a Conditional Use Permit to expand an existing non-
conforming garage by 13.5 square feet within 2 feet of the east property line.  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION:  Single-Family Residential ZONING: R-1-7.5; 
ASSESSOR’S MAP #: 39 1E 014CC; TAX LOT: 3000 
 
Staff Decision stands 3-0 
 
 
B. PLANNING ACTION:  2007-00961 
SUBJECT PROPERTY:  1618 Ashland St. 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Kerry KenCairn for Miller Paint 
DESCRIPTION:  Request for a Site Review approval for a 994 square foot addition to the 
existing Miller Paint building located at 1618 Ashland St.   
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION:  Commercial ZONING: C-1; ASSESSOR’S 
MAP #: 39 1E 15AB; TAX LOT: 6600 
 
Staff Decision stands 3-0 
 
C. PLANNING ACTION: 2007-01201  
SUBJECT PROPERTY: 50 W Hersey St 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Ashland Christian Fellowship & Pilot Rock Christian School 
DESCRIPTION: Request for a modification of an existing Conditional Use Permit to allow the use 
of Ashland Christian Fellowship’s Educational/Multi-Purpose Wing Sunday School classroom 
facilities to offer  year-round/Monday through Friday pre-school, after-school daycare, pre-
kindergarten and kindergarten classes for the property located at 50 West Hersey Street.  The 
application also requires an Exception to Street Standards to allow the placement of a curbside 
sidewalk along a steeply sloped section of the site’s Oak Street frontage, where a park row 
planting strip would typically be required. 



COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION: Employment Zoning: E-1  ASSESSOR’S MAP: 39 
1E 04 CD 1200;  
 
Staff Decision stands 3-0 

 
 
IV. TYPE II PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A.  PLANNING ACTION: 2007-01215  
SUBJECT  PROPERTY: 510 Granite Street 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Urban Development Services 
DESCRIPTION:  Request for a Variance to exceed the maximum lot coverage requirements of 
the Woodland Residential (WR) zoning district for the vacant parcel located at 510 Granite Street.  
The maximum lot coverage permitted is 7 percent of the total lot area, and the request is to 
increase this amount to 25 percent lot coverage to address the fact that 16 percent of the lot area 
is already covered by an existing paved driveway serving seven parcels.  A similar Variance was 
approved for this parcel in 2005 to allow 23 percent lot coverage - this request involves an 
additional 418 square feet of lot coverage.   
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION: Woodland Residential; ZONING: WR; ASSESSOR’S 
MAP: 39 1E 17 AA, TAX LOT: 1100 
 
Chair Doetterer read format script, detailing the rules and procedures for public hearings.  Both 
Dawkins and Doetterer stated they made a site visit. 
 
Severson provided a staff report detailing the history of the site and the current request before the 
Hearings Board. 
 
Mark Knox, 700 Mistletoe Rd, as agent for the property owner summarized the applicant’s 
request stating that it was a minor 2% additional coverage request and also mentioned that 
previously the lot had been described as unbuildable due to the non conforming nature of the 
parcel.  Surrounding lots are zoned R-1-10, which allow higher lot coverage with larger lot sizes 
than the subject property.  Subtracting the driveway and parking from the lot coverage allowed in 
the zone leaves 600 or so square feet for the building footprint.   
 
Knox was asked why a larger variance wasn’t requested several years ago to better deal with the 
site’s coverage constraints and Hillside Ordinance issues. 
 
Knox stated that design issues with the Hillside Ordinance could create large volume, up to a 28 
foot overall height including roof and that aesthetics were some of the issue.  Safety is another 
component.  Cars could park in the easement and possibly into the driveway which could cause 
safety access problems for fire access.  Applicants have worked with a designer and have had 
immediate issues with site work retaining walls, turning radius, etc. 
 
Terry Clement, owner of the lot spoke and stated that the request boils down to a small area in 
question.  He stated that he thought the original lot coverage variance was for the footprint of 
house, not the driveway also.  He also thought that a gravel driveway surface wouldn’t trigger lot 
coverage.  What is left is too small to deal with.  The shared drive situation is what triggers the 
problem.  An alternative is to put house right up to the common drive.  Parking is going to be a 
problem for guests.  Impervious surface is the problem.  Clement stated he would actually want 
more to move house back further and have more driveway.  Compare his lot to lots on Ashland 
Creek Dr, they are much smaller lots with much more coverage.  Utility easement move to 
driveway would cause other problems for use of the land.  He stated he is not asking for bigger 
house, but rather looking for parking spots.  
 
No questions of the Hearings Board for the applicant. The hearing was closed at 2:05 
 



Doetterer requested clarification on impervious surface as it relates to lot coverage. 
 
Severson noted that there are three components and the original variance spelled out specific 
components of lot coverage.  The definitions of Lot coverage; does not allow normal infiltration of 
water and also as it is more than 50 feet in length so classified as flag drive and needs to be 
paved. 
 
The record was closed by Chair Doetterer at 2:07. 
 
Marsh made a motion to approve the variance, with a second from Doetterer. 
 
Marsh stated that she felt the application does meet the requirements of the variance criteria; 
small lot size, existence of existing shared drive is unique.  The benefit of fire protection and 
house placement that minimizes the impact to the adjacent residences meet criteria.  
Circumstances were not willfully self imposed, as the lots were created and zoned this way. 
 
She also commented that the Land Use Code does contain lot coverage definition and needs to 
be looked at during the Land Use Code review process. 
 
Doetterer clarified the motion to include staff conditions of approval, Marsh concurred. 
 
Dawkins noted that the drive is not paved, but someone probably will.  He also stated that he has 
no problem with this variance, but regardless of zoning, it was purchased with that zoning so it is 
self imposed, as no one was forced to purchase the lot. 
 
Doetterer stated that he approves also, looked at variance definition and concurred. 
 
Motion carries 3-0. 
 
 
B. PLANNING ACTION: 2007-00985  
SUBJECT PROPERTY: 805 Oak St 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Holden, Hugh & Liesa 
DESCRIPTION: Request for a Land Partition to create two lots, including one flag lot, for the 
property located at 805 Oak Street.  The application also requests an Exception to Street 
Standards to allow the placement of a driveway 16 feet from the driveway to the south, where a 
minimum of 24 feet is required. 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION: Single Family Residential ZONING: R-1-5-P 
ASSESSOR’S MAP 39 1E 04 TAX LOT CA 2803;  
 
Chair Doetterer asked the Hearings Board to communicate any biases or ex-parte contact 
with all stating that it was limited to a site visit. 
 
Severson provided a summary of the staff report by noting that the request is for a land 
partition and exception to street standards for the driveway.  He noted that the 16 foot 
driveway separation rather than the required 24 is reason for hearing.  The partition is 
very straightforward and meets the partition criteria. The application does provide 
information showing that the driveway standard could be met as the applicant originally 
submitted.  They then changed their application and staff was not able to support the 
request so a hearing was requested by the applicant. 
 



Marsh asked about aligning the driveway with the street across from the proposed 
driveway on Oak St and Severson noted that the PW/Engineering Dept had no issues with 
its placement. 
 
Staff explained how driveway distances were measured.  Dawkins then asked for staff’s 
recommendation.  Severson stated that staff recommends the approval of the land 
partition, but a denial of the exception to the street standards for the distance between 
driveways. 
 
Applicants and property owners Hugh and Liesa Holden, along with Tom Giordano, 
agent and land use planner explained that the driveway is really the only issue.   The 
made an attempt to join driveways with the existing Tolliver Lane but that didn’t work 
out.  The original layout could work, but would be better with the exception and it would 
better align with Sleepy Hollow. 
 
Hugh Holden provided two exhibits and stated that the issue is functionality.  If vehicle 
parked there, width goes to 7 feet.  The existing driveway does save a tree. 
He also noted that the majority of drives along Oak do not currently comply, including 
some new ones, and also commented that all neighbors he spoke with are ok with the 
project. 
 
 
Functionality and safety are the reasons for the request.  Additionally, an old curb cut will 
be eliminated on other side of property so there is no increase in curb cuts for the 
property.  Giordano noted that he sees staff point of view, but there are so many 
exceptions existing along Oak St. 
 
Marsh asked if the existing driveway on the north end of the property would work and 
Giordano noted that it would be too close for setbacks to work. 
 
Margueritte Hickman, City of Ashland Fire Marshal mentioned that the recent site plan 
has to work around tree.  Fire access needs turning radius data before Fire Dept could 
recommend one proposal over another and that maybe a condition could be added for 
radius information.  She also noted that parking could not go into the driveway area so 
radius information is critical. 
 
Doetterer asked if the width of driveway is not as big of deal as whether or not a car is 
parked.  Hickman stated that the drive width is first priority, the radius second. 
 
Doetterer asked if the applicant would like to use their rebuttal time and Giordano 
clarified that they are not saying that they are proposing a parking space in the driveway 
and that the new layout will make the movement easier, not a more difficult radius.  He 
also noted that a landscape architect did check that tree will be able to meet fire access 
standards for height and width and that pavers will be installed on the portion of the 
driveway near the tree, which will able to support the 44,000 pounds required for fire 
apparatus. 



 
The hearing was closed at 2:40. 
 
Severson clarified that 13.5 feet in height is required for tree branches and the arborist 
stated it will work. 
 
Dawkins noted that he feels the real issue is trying to stick to street standards and noted 
the importance of curb and sidewalk regularities for pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
The record was closed at 2:43. 
 
Marsh stated that the request was difficult , but can’t see where it meets the exception 
standards.  What is unique? 
 
Dawkins added that the removal of one curb cut doesn’t figure in to the decision since it 
is non usable anyway.  Tolliver lane would have been a good solution. 
 
Doetterer went through the exception criteria and gave his opinions: minimum needed  to 
aleiviate the difficulty – yes, not changing transportation facility – equal, unique or 
unusual-  harder to determine.  Maybe is unique because it is there already, just wanting a 
flag drive down the side of it. 
 
Marsh noted that it is needed because a second lot is being requested.  
 
Doetterer added that it does bring more traffic to the street.  The driveway may be better 
to be wider with additional traffic. 
 
Marsh stated that, with new parcel, there is an opportunity to require meeting 
development standards.  The originally submitted driveway drawing does meet so the 
issue is not limiting new lot creation so the criteria should be followed. 
 
Marsh made a motion to approve the partition and deny the exception to street standards 
for the driveway location. A second was provided by Doetterer with the motion carrying 
3-0. 
 
 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – Adoption of Findings, Orders & Conclusions 

A. Findings for PA2007-001215, 510 Granite St 
B. Findings for PA2007-00985, 805 Oak St 

 
Dawkins then moved to adopt findings for both 510 Granite St and 805 Oak St, with a 
second from Marsh the motion was approved 3-0 
 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:08. 
 



 

 
ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2007 

MINUTES 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair John Stromberg at the Ashland Civic Center, 1175 E. Main Street, 
Ashland, OR  
 

Commissioners Present:   Council Liaison: 
John Stromberg, Chair 
Michael Dawkins 
Olena Black 
Tom Dimitre 

 Cate Hartzell, Council Liaison, absent due to quasi-judicial 
 agenda items. 

John Fields 
Pam Marsh 

  

Dave Dotterrer 
Melanie Mindlin 
Mike Morris 

 Staff Present: 
David Stalheim, Community Development Director 
Angela Barry, Assistant Planner 

Absent Members:  Adam Hanks, Permit Manager 
No absent members  Sue Yates, Executive Secretary 

 
II. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Mindlin will be out of town and will need a replacement for the October 9, 2007 Hearings Board. 
 
III. APPROVE AGENDA 

Dimitre/Dotterrer m/s to approve the agenda.  Voice Vote:  Approved. 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. Approval of Minutes 
  1. August 14, 2007 Planning Commission Meeting 
  2. August 28, 2007 Planning Commission, Continuation of August 14, 2007 Regular Meeting 

Dimitre/Black m/s to approve the Consent Agenda.  Voice Vote:  Approved. 
 
V. PUBLIC FORUM – No one came forward to speak. 
 
VI. TYPE II PUBLIC HEARING 
 A. PLANNING ACTION:   PA-2007-00980 
  SUBJECT PROPERTY: WESTWOOD/STRAWBERRY  
  OWNERS/APPLICANT: City of Ashland 
 

This item has been continued to the October 9, 2007 Planning Commission Meeting. 
 
 B. PLANNING ACTION 2007-00250 
  SUBJECT PROPERTY: 281 FOURTH STREET 
  APPLICANT:  AARON GLOVER 

DESCRIPTION:  Request for a Conditional Use Permit for a theater use and a Type II Variance to parking for a 
property located at 281 Fourth Street. 

 
Site Visits/Ex Parte Contacts/Bias/Conflict of Interest 

 Marsh stated she has been to the Mobius site about three times.  On one visit prior to the application, she noticed a lot of 
teenagers congregated on the sidewalk, but not doing anything objective.  The last visits have been since the application 
was filed.  The first time she walked by, there appeared to be a staff person outside the door and she noted no obvious 
impact to the neighborhood.  On her most recent visit on Saturday, she observed people standing outside Mobius smoking 
and standing quietly.  From the sidewalk she could hear noise that would accompany belly dancing.  In both cases, she saw 
there was a lot of parking in the commercial area and a lot of parking on A Street.  There did not appear to be any 



 

ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                                                                                                                                                                                                                      2 
REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2007 

 
commercially related parking on B Street.  It appeared that Peerless Restaurant and Mobius were sharing all the public 
parking that exists on the property.  

 Dawkins has gone by the building frequently and he has been in the building.   
 Mindlin has been to three or four events in the last couple of years and she used to live on Fourth Street, nearby and is 

familiar with the area.   
 Dimitre had no ex parte contact or site visit.   
 Stromberg has been there ten to 15 times over the last year and does not have any particular impressions to report.   
 Fields is familiar with the site but had no ex parte contact.   
 Morris has been by the site during the day.  He received an e-mail from a friend, read it and gave it to Barry to be entered 

into the record.   
 Black went to a multi-media recording event around 2003.  She noticed a feeling of congestion around the entry/exit door.  

It might have changed since then.  Monday she drove by Mobius around 8:00 p.m. and it appeared the parking is well-used 
but did not if there was event going on or not.   

 Dotterrer had a site visit and no ex parte contacts.   
 

Stromberg asked if anyone wished to comment or rebut the site visits and ex parte contacts.  No one wanted to comment. 
 
STAFF REPORT 
Barry reviewed the project (see Staff Report dated August 14, 2007).  The deadline for approving or denying the application is 
December 11, 2007.   
 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the theater use for audiences up to 120 people.  The theater use is 
currently functioning without the land use approvals.  The building does not have an approved building permit for an assembly 
use and the approved occupancy is currently 49 people.   
 
The primary potential impacts of the use would be noise, traffic and any other factors found to be relevant by the Planning 
Commission.  The applicant has not provided information addressing potential traffic impacts to the use other than to say the 
use is in operation with no complaints having been filed.  Staff had recommended the applicants further address this issue 
because they are requesting a significant increase in the audience size they wish to accommodate.  Noise is a potential issue 
due to the nature of the use.  There are no details in the application explaining their crowd control policies or the mitigation 
methods.  Since noticing the application, six letters have been submitted from the neighbors voicing concerns about 
neighborhood compatibility.  Two letters have been submitted in support of the theater use.   
 
The applicant is also requesting a Variance that exceeds the 50 percent threshold for an Administrative Variance in a Historic 
area to the parking requirements and is therefore being processed as a Type II public hearing.  The applicant has provided four 
informal parking agreements which total 22 parking spaces.  The applicant submitted a parking map.  The ordinance allows for 
joint use of parking facilities provided the uses do not overlap in the time of day the parking will be needed, that the facilities 
are within 200 feet of each other and the right to use the off-street parking is legally established by deed, easement, or some 
kind of similar written instrument.  No information has been provided by the applicants on how the properties that are donating 
the parking spaces will be meeting their own parking requirements.  Planning records show that at least seven of the proposed 
shared spaces already serve residential or restaurant uses that would overlap during the peak demand time and would not be 
available to Mobius.  The parking lot the applicant proposes to use behind the building at 287 Fourth Street is already 
constrained by an agreement with the Peerless Restaurant that allows restaurant customers to park there after 5 p.m.  It is not 
clear from the forms provided by the property owners whether they are willing to sign any kind of formal legal agreement 
allowing for shared use of the parking.  The applicant has declined to submit verification of this.  Staff cannot determine, at this 
time, whether any of the off-street parking spaces that were proposed would actually be available to serve the theater use.  It 
may meet the criteria for unique and unusual circumstances and the limited parking situation could be said to not be self-
imposed.   
 
Due to the large number of outstanding issues the applicant chose not to address, Staff is unable to recommend approval of the 
project.  It’s not clear the burden of proof has been met for either the CUP or Variance criteria, therefore, Staff is 
recommending denial of the application. 
 
MARGUERITTE HICKMAN, Fire Marshall, City of Ashland, stated the occupancy is based on the use permitted in the building.  
Mobius’ occupancy is currently 49 people.  If it becomes an assembly occupancy, less square footage is required in the 
building and a 120 person occupancy would be a reasonable expectation.   
 



 

ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                                                                                                                                                                                                                      3 
REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2007 

 
The Commissioners raised a number of questions and had lengthy discussion surrounding the parking requirements.  There was 
confusion over the number of parking spaces being requested and how many are available.  Are there clearly and legally 
defined rights to parking spaces?  How can the Commission work with a situation where overlap and defined hours seem 
legitimate?  Is there a way to make it work?  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
BERYL JACOBSON, 2255 Ranch Road, explained that they chose to hand in their packet with some creative ideas.  They felt the 
parking agreement that was given to them by the City was very overwhelming and would be daunting for most businesses to 
sign before an agreement was even made so they chose to use a document that was clear with a signed agreement.  Jacobson 
read his prepared comments.  He explained their organization and their vision.  He believes they meet the criteria for the 
parking Variance because the Railroad District is an area comprised primarily of art galleries, restaurants and commercial 
business.  Fourth Street is one of the widest streets in Ashland and potentially a gateway to the railroad property.  Allowing for 
a nightscape in this area will help create more light, activity and ultimately more safety.  The combination of these factors 
makes it a unique circumstance not typical elsewhere and benefits outweigh any potential negative impacts.  They suggest a 
CUP be granted and they specifically define the circumstances proposed as follows: 
1) Intermittent uses during off hours. 
2) Maximum 15 events per month – they will control the booking of events 
3) Hours of operation for events from 8:00 p.m. to 1 a.m. 
4) Limit occupancy to 175. 
5) Submit events well in advance to the neighbors and be open to moving the events around. 
6) Conflicts mentioned would be handled by: 
  a) Hired staff to clean neighborhood within 200 feet following an event 
  b) Closed door policy to limit noise 
  c) Alleyway used only for loading and unloading equipment 

d) No vehicles will be left idling in the alley for longer than necessary for loading and unloading of 
equipment. 

  e) Staff will monitor and secure the neighborhood before, during and after events 
  f) Clear communication to patrons 
 
TOM GIORDANO, 2635 Takelma Way, believes Staff has taken the strictest approach in determining the parking requirement.  He 
suggested calculating the parking based on square footage (one parking space for every 100 square feet of floor area).  Also, 
commercial buildings in the Historic District allow for a 50 percent reduction to the parking.  This use will benefit the 
community because it is open to a variety of ages and different points of view.   
 
AARON GLOVER, 725 Adams Road, Talent, OR, asked when the code was adopted that required a legal agreement be provided 
for shared parking.  Staff responded it was 1984.   
 
Jacobson said it is obvious in this neighborhood at night that there is within 200 feet of their business, plenty of parking to 
accommodate the occupancy they are requesting. There are five parking spaces in front of their business.   
 
Glover said they are asking for 120 seats, not 175.  Staff clarified that parking is calculated one parking space for every four 
seats, so 30 spaces are required.   
 
JOHN SELIGMAN, 248 Third Street, lives within 200 feet of Mobius.  He has never once been bothered by the noise from 
Mobius.  Once in awhile, he hears music, but very little.  He does not hear anything from the foot traffic in the alley.  Mobius is 
for everyone – it is a community venue and it is important to have it in his neighborhood.  With regard to parking, the Peerless 
Hotel closes down in the wintertime for a month and a half.  He urged the Commission to grant approval.   
 
JOHN GAFFEY, 637 Oak Street, said he’s hearing that a business could renegotiate their parking, particularly the hours of 
operation.  He wondered how many police calls or complaints are on record for Mobius.  The Old Ashland Armory has 
probably used the maximum number of Variances.  They only have street parking.  The art walk on A Street is like a Mardi 
Gras.  Is this a unique situation and does granting a Variance have benefits?  He uses Mobius on Fridays for Tango.  It is a “just 
right” space.  It provides an ambience and he wants the Commission to consider this space cannot be replicated. 
 
MARVIN RATNER, 1125 Village Green Drive, said that Ashland is a unique, cultural venue.  He goes to Mobius often and can bike 
there; it’s convenient.  A lot of people that go there enjoy the downtown and either walk or bike because of its central location.  



 

ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                                                                                                                                                                                                                      4 
REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2007 

 
He has never heard any noise outside Mobius.   Most of the events draw only 25 to 75 people and he does not see a parking 
problem.   
 
CHRIS BYRNE,  2345 Ranch Road, said before moving to Ashland, they visited Mobius and it heavily influenced their decision 
to move to Ashland.  Culturally, it has enriched his life.  He lives in town, works at Mobius, and rides his bike to and from 
work –Mobius helps one more family live and work in town.   
 
RICHARD BROWNE, 826 S. Mountain, said he frequents Mobius two to three times a month and he has never had a parking 
problem when he drives, parking out in front about 90 percent of the time.  This type of venue does not exist anyplace else in 
town.   
 
Fields read the comments from ORIANA SPRATT, 212 Patterson Street, into the record.  She supports the project.   
 
JEFF FEINBERG,  211 Normal Avenue, said he has never had a parking problem at the Mobius.  They are the only venue in town 
that brings national musicians to town. If anything, he is bothered Mobius has been here four years and they have received little 
community support.   
 
STEVE SCHEIN, 167 Church Street, reported Fourth Street is a ghost town at night.  By doing a related study, he has been 
astonished at the far-reaching vision and implications this business has for such small town.  He has asked entertainers that 
travel through just why they are willing to perform for only 20 people.  The answer has been:  “it’s the room.”  He does not see 
a parking problem. The social impact enormously outweighs anything negative. 
 
MARLA WELP, 78 North Mountain Avenue, agreed with all the previous comments in favor.  
 
The following persons submitted comments for the record in support of the application. 
CHRIS VANSCHAACK, 429 Morton Street 
GENE BURNETT,549 B Street, #3 
SAMARRA BURNETT, 549 B Street, #3 
STEVE LANUSSE, 320 Oak Street 
RUSS RODRIGUEZ, 530-B Maple Way 
SHANTI LOBAUGH, 205 Piedmont Drive 
STEVEN M. SIRIANNI, 558 Holly Street 
LEAH SCHRODT, 1040 East Main Street, Apt. B 
MITZI MILES-KUBOTA, 850 Beswick Way 
ERIC NOVISEDLAK, 309 Harrison Street 
ED MCGUIGAN, 6306 Adams Road, Talent, OR  97540 
BETSY MCGUIGAN, 6306 Adams Road, Talent, OR  97540 
CLAIRE KRULIKOWSKI, 228 Talent Avenue, #2, Talent, OR  97540 
DEBRA THORNTON, 107 Second Street 
JEFF ALTEMUS, 204 Alicia Avenue 
ANNIE MCINTYRE, 204 Alicia Avenue 
MURIEL MORRISON, 849 Pavilion 
RON ROTH, 6950 Old Highway 99 South 
BIRGITTE FETTE, 896 Blackberry Lane 
 
Rebuttal - Glover emphasized that while the whole business structure isn’t completely dependent on the events they hold, the 
decision, if granted, will very strongly affect their ability to continue what they are doing. 
 
Stromberg noted they have been operating without a CUP and asked how the Commission should factor that into the credibility 
of the other things the applicants have said tonight.  Glover said they have spent a lot of time bringing in their media and 
internet component.  They realized the events were valuable and it grew from that.  Submitting the application and to get to this 
point has taken some time.  Jacobson didn’t realize what constituted a “theater.”  It has become clear through this process that 
they need a CUP for a theater and it has taken well over a year to get this point. 
 
Stromberg closed the public hearing and closed the record. 

 
VIII. TYPE III PLANNING ACTIONS 



 

ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                                                                                                                                                                                                                      5 
REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2007 

 
 A. PLANNING ACTION: PA2007-00250 
  APPLICANT:  City of Ashland 
 DESCRIPTION:  Proposed amendments to the Ashland Land Use Ordinance implementing portions 

of the recommendations in the Land Use Ordinance Review prepared by Siegel Planning Services.  In addition, 
other recommendations of the City Planning Director concerning land use decision-making procedures will be 
considered.   

 
Stalheim stated the first draft of the amendments was presented at the July 24, 2007 Planning Commission Study Session and 
at the July 31st, Special Planning Commission meeting, the Commission moved to start the public hearing process on the 
proposed amendments and set the date for September 11, 2007.  A second draft based on some public comments, Planning 
Commission review and Staff review was prepared and has been included in this month’s packet.   
 
Stalheim acknowledged Colin Swales and Mark Knox who each submitted detailed comments on the first draft.  Their input 
was greatly appreciated.  He also thanked those Planning Commission members who submitted comments that have been 
included in the record.  He noted that comments have been received by e-mail in the last few days from:  Dennis Goldstein 
(dated September 7th),  Stalheim’s response to Goldstein’s, John Schwendener (dated September 9th), Michael Young and 
Jacquelyn Young, and drawings from the City’s engineering staff for vision clearance.  The Commissioners should have 
received an e-mail from Brandon Goldman with the Housing Commissioner’s review, from Mark Knox (dated August 30th), 
Dennis Goldstein (dated September 10, 2007), and Bonnie Brodersen (dated September 10th).  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
DENNIS GOLDSTEIN, 766 Roca Street, said he is an attorney and has been involved in real estate and in that capacity has both 
drafted, revised and commented on legislation and ordinances relating to housing. After looking at the proposed revisions and 
the ordinance, he has found the ordinance is extremely difficult to navigate.  Also, the language is not as clearly written as it 
could be.  With regard to the policies behind the code, from what he has seen, he would agree with the purposes, but the 
difficulty in reading the code undermines the purpose of the code and wastes staff time and the public’s time in locating 
information in the code.  He has not had time to comment on everything but some of his comments are contained in his letter. 
 
He believes there is an improvement to the Type I planning actions by lengthening the comment period from ten to 14 days, 
making it a little earlier in the process, however, he thinks it should be even earlier. The sooner affected property owners can 
talk to applicant(s) at a time when fewer expenses will have been involved and they are less fixed in their position, the better.     
 
The ordinance should require that the notice state the timeframe and the requirements for appeal. 
 
He does not want the ordinance interpretation politicized.  It is a matter for the City Attorney.  Interpretations should be 
included on the website and their location cited in the ordinance. 
 
Dawkins/Black m/s to stay until 10 p.m.  Voice Vote:  Approved. 
 
EVAN ARCHERD, 550 E. Main Street, has found most of the amendments to be positive changes.  He has two issues: 
1.  Residential in C-1 and E-1 zones.  He liked the original revision much better than the second revision.  By prohibiting 
residential in the E-1 and C-1 is a good idea.  If we want to allow them in any way, he would suggest they make them a 
Conditional Use.  Allowing only 500 square foot units is like a band-aid.  It should either be allowed or not allowed at all.  He 
suggested eliminating the residential except with a Conditional Use Permit. 
2.  Changing the motel/hotel criteria.  He thought Option 2 was simple and direct.  If you want to outlaw timeshares and 
fractional uses, we should write a code that outlaws them.  To put it in a definition is misplaced and misguided.  Hotels and 
motels are already a Conditional Use in the C1 and E-1 zones.  The other language unnecessarily complicates the process. 
 
BRENT THOMPSON, 582 Allison, suggested passing the simple items and come back and struggle with the more difficult issues.  
He will pick up a revised draft, review it and submit written comments.   
 
Stromberg closed this public hearing, but the record will stay open to be discussed at a Special Planning Commission meeting 
scheduled for 7:00 p.m. on October 4, 2007. At that meeting, the integrated changes will be discussed.   
 
Stalheim said some of the changes in the new draft will include: 
 Stromberg’s edits to the Definitions 
 Marsh’s suggestion to redefine the gross floor area 



 

ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                                                                                                                                                                                                                      6 
REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2007 

 
 Half-story daylight basement 
 Vision clearance 
 Maps 
Stalheim will get the revisions out in the next week. 
 
Fields/Dawkins m/s to continue keeping the record open for further discussion on October 4, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. at the Ashland Civic 
Center.  Voice Vote:  Unanimously approved. 
 
VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. ADOPTION OF FINDINGS – PA2006-01663, 87 W. Nevada & 811 Helman, Ashland Flowershop & Greenhouse 
Inc/Greg & Valri Williams 

Ex parte contacts – There were none.  Morris had a discussion with his ex-neighbor, but nothing of substance.   
 
Dotterrer/Morris m/s to approve the above-noted Findings.  Roll Call:  Unanimously approved. 
 
VI.  B. (Continuation of PA2007-00250, 281 Fourth Street, Aaron Glover) 
 
COMMIMSSIONERS’ DISCUSSION AND MOTION 
Stalheim read “Joint Use of Facilities” to the Commissioners.   
 
The Commissioners discussed several ways they could work up conditions so this application could be approved.  Some argued 
the applicants did not provide enough information and there is confusion over specifically what the applicants are requesting. 
The number of parking spaces the applicants have available is still unclear.     
 
Dawkins/Black m/s to continue the meeting until 10:30 p.m. 
 
Marsh said she cannot vote for this project tonight.  The driving question is the CUP.  Can the application satisfy the criteria 
for a CUP?  The applicants have come up with a list of things for crowd control measures but she has not seen any of this in 
writing until tonight.  The specifics are very relevant for the Commissioners to know the applicants can control the impact of 
120 people leaving the venue at midnight.  She would like to see their plan to know they meet the criteria of minimizing the 
impact of the target area.  She would agree to a continuation with the details ironed out along with a parking plan and a crowd 
control plan. 
 
Dawkins said he walks through this neighborhood all the time and with or without the venue, parking is not a problem.  We are 
making everything too complicated.  There are other things happening in the neighborhood that are not restricted.  He would 
like to make a motion and work out the conditions. 
 
Dawkins/Mindlin m/s to approve PA2007-00250.   
 
Mindlin said part of what makes this project special is it is a low-cost venue.  We have to look at how our planning process 
interacts with the public.  She agrees with Dawkins that the parking is there and to focus on a rejection of this proposed 
business activity on the basis there is a parking problem, feels legalistic and spurious. 
 
Dimitre, Morris and Dotterrer don’t believe we have a complete application and it has not met the burden of proof.  They are 
willing to continue it so they can come back with something they can support. 
 
Black would like to see the comments they made tonight in writing with the following and then the Commission can move 
forward. 

Commit events to a specific time and specify the number of people allowed.   
 Request a Variance based on exceeding the 200 feet. 
 Address bike parking. 
 Come back to the Commission in a year and review. 
 No idling of vehicles in the alley. 
 If the venue is a certain size, they will take care of clean-up. 
 Make sure the building isn’t going to be a problem with occupancy and fire. 
 State their plan.   
 



 

ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION                                                                                                                                                                                                                      7 
REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2007 

 
Fields remembered 25 years ago when people in town were asking how we could create a traffic problem in the Railroad 
District.  The parking reductions implemented then was to encourage that level of density.  It’s rare that Mobius can get a big 
draw of people.  Maybe we can give them another month to work these things out, but he is looking at the level of complexity 
of what we are creating.  It is making it difficult to do anything.  In this case, he does not see the neighborhood rising up. 
 
Stromberg thought a continuation would be advisable and he doesn’t want to compromise our process. 
 
Stromberg called for the question.  Dimitre seconded.  The motion failed with Fields, Black, Mindlin, Dawkins and Morris voting 
‘no” and Dimitre, Stromberg, Dotterrer and Marsh voting “yes.”   
 
Roll Call on Dawkins’ motion – Dawkins, Black and Mindlin voted “yes” and Dotterrer, Marsh, Morris, Fields, Stromberg and 
Dimitre voted “no.”  The motion failed.   
 
Morris/Dimitre m/s to continue the meeting to the October 9, 2007 Planning Commission meeting at 7:00 p.m. at the Ashland Civic 
Center, 1175 E. Main Street.  Morris/Black m/s amended the motion to leave the record open for two weeks.  Roll Call:  The motion 
was unanimously approved. 
 
ADJOURNMENT – The meeting was adjourned at 10:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
Sue Yates, Executive Secretary 
 
 
 



 

















 





 

































 





 





 













 

















 





 





































































 



 
Planning Action 2007-00250 Ashland Planning Department – Staff Report / AB 
Applicant: Aaren Glover Page   1 of 6  

ASHLAND PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
STAFF REPORT ADDENDUM 

October 9, 2007 
 
 
PLANNING ACTION: PA2007-00250 
 
APPLICANT:  Aaren Glover 
 
LOCATION: 281 Fourth St. 
 
ZONE DESIGNATION: E-1 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION:  Employment  
 
APPLICATION DEEMED COMPLETE:  June 14, 2007 
 
120-DAY TIME LIMIT:  October 12, 2007 
 
ORDINANCE REFERENCE:   18.40 E-1 Employment District 
      18.92 Off-Street Parking 
      18.100 Variances 
      18.104 Conditional Use Permits 
 
REQUEST: Request for a Conditional Use Permit for a theater use and a Type II Variance to 
parking for a property located at 281 Fourth St.  
 

I. Relevant Facts 

A. Background - History of Application 

The application was heard by the Planning Commission on September 11, 2007. The 
Planning Commission left the record open for two weeks to allow additional submittals 
by the applicant and continued the deliberation to October 9, 2007. 

II. Project Impact 

A. Conditional Use Permit 

The applicant has proposed a number of strategies to address the impacts raised by the 
neighbors, including noise, trash, and security issues. These are summarized in the 
attached outline provided by the applicant, and are reflected in the attached conditions. 
Several issues that may not be adequately addressed by the addendum are the use of 
alcohol, the hours of operation, the number of patrons, and the monitoring of noise. 
Criteria addressing impact are a particularly pertinent part of the Conditional Use 



 
Planning Action 2007-00250 Ashland Planning Department – Staff Report / AB 
Applicant: Aaren Glover Page   2 of 6  

process, since a Conditional Use Permit runs with the property and is part of the 
neighborhood regardless of the tenants. 

1. Alcohol Service 

The applicant has added the serving of alcohol to their request. Since nightclubs 
are a Conditional Use in this zone, an application for alcohol service in 
conjunction with live music would typically require a Conditional Use Permit 
(See Section 18.08.517). The applicant states that the request is similar to uses in 
place at Oregon Shakespeare or Oregon Cabaret, but these facilities are located in 
a downtown zone, where bars and nightclubs are a permitted use and do not have 
to go through the Conditional Use Permit process. The request for alcohol service 
appears to be a significant change from the original application and should be 
addressed through submittal of a Conditional Use Permit addressing the criteria 
and issues pertinent to that request. Staff is recommending a condition prohibiting 
the service of alcohol unless a Conditional Use Permit is obtained for that use. 

2. Hours of Operation 

The applicant is proposing hours of operation be until 1 a.m. Staff is 
recommending that weeknight shows be until 11 p.m. in order to reduce impacts 
on the surrounding residential uses. A condition is included addressing this issue. 

3. Number of patrons 

The applicant stated that the majority of their events would be smaller scale 
events and that they only produce several events per month with an audience size 
greater than 120 people. In discussions with the applicant, they have indicated to 
staff that 30 people would be a reasonable estimate of the number of additional 
people needed to cover staff and band members for larger events. For this reason, 
staff has proposed conditions limiting the total occupancy to 150 persons, to 
cover the audience and the needed staff members. Large events, with 100 to 150 
persons, would be limited to seven per month. Smaller sized events could be more 
frequent and this is also addressed in the attached conditions. Conditions address 
only total occupancy, as the mix of patrons, staff, and artists would be difficult to 
verify. 

4. Monitoring of Noise 

While the applicant is proposing that they monitor noise on the site during the 
first year of operation, Staff is recommending that if complaints are received that 
the Planning Director have the authority to require a third party noise report 
prepared by a qualified consultant. This will give an opportunity to obtain 
unbiased information regarding actual noise levels should there continue to be a 
perceived problem in the neighborhood. 



 
Planning Action 2007-00250 Ashland Planning Department – Staff Report / AB 
Applicant: Aaren Glover Page   3 of 6  

B. Variance 

The applicant has adjusted the Variance application by proposing to provide 13 spaces 
through a lease agreement. They are also requesting a Variance to the Code provision 
that parking must be within 200 feet of the facility. They are requesting that this distance 
be extended to ¼ mile, as this distance would be a reasonable distance to expect people to 
walk for this type of venue. Additionally, Staff is recommending that the shared parking 
be in one location, so that patrons can reasonably be expected to find and use it, and this 
is included in the conditions. A Variance to the 200 foot requirement would help the 
applicant accomplish this and make the proposal more realistic than having parking 
scattered through the neighborhood. It also simplifies the task of verifying the availability 
of spaces being proposed. They have not, however, included a specific location for 
parking in their application.   

III. Procedural - Required Burden of Proof 

The criteria for Conditional Use Permit are described in 18.104.050 as follows: 

The following criteria shall be used to approve or deny an application: 

A. That the use would be in conformance with all standards within the zoning district in which the 
use is proposed to be located, and in conformance with relevant Comprehensive plan policies 
that are not implemented by any City, State, or Federal law or program. 

B. That adequate capacity of City facilities for water, sewer, paved access to and through the 
development, electricity, urban storm drainage, and adequate transportation can and will be 
provided to and through the subject property. 

C. That the conditional use will have no greater adverse material effect on the livability of the 
impact area when compared to the development of the subject lot with the target use of the 
zone. When evaluating the effect of the proposed use on the impact area, the following factors 
of livability of the impact area shall be considered in relation to the target use of the zone: 

1. Similarity in scale, bulk, and coverage. 

2. Generation of traffic and effects on surrounding streets. Increases in pedestrian, bicycle, 
and mass transit use are considered beneficial regardless of capacity of facilities. 

3. Architectural compatibility with the impact area. 

4. Air quality, including the generation of dust, odors, or other environmental pollutants. 

5. Generation of noise, light, and glare. 

6. The development of adjacent properties as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan. 

7. Other factors found to be relevant by the Hearing Authority for review of the proposed use. 



 
Planning Action 2007-00250 Ashland Planning Department – Staff Report / AB 
Applicant: Aaren Glover Page   4 of 6  

The criteria for a Variance are described in 18.72.090 as follows: 

A. That there are unique or unusual circumstances which apply to this site which do not typically 
apply elsewhere.  

B. That the proposal's benefits will be greater than any negative impacts on the development of 
the adjacent uses; and will further the purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City. (Ord.2425 S1, 1987).  

C. That the circumstances or conditions have not been willfully or purposely self-imposed. 

IV. Conclusions and Recommendations 

The Planning Commission must decide if the applicant’s proposals and the attached 
conditions adequately address the criteria for Conditional Use Permit and for a parking 
Variance. While no information has been provided regarding the actual intended location 
of the shared parking, there are several locations within a quarter mile of the site that 
could meet the need, if the applicant is able to secure an agreement for the required 
number of spaces. Additionally, the requested number of parking spaces has been 
reduced to the 50% threshold that would typically be approvable through an 
administrative process if they were within 200 feet. 

Regarding the Conditional Use Permit criteria, the Planning Commission must weigh the 
concerns raised by the neighbors against the conditions proposed by the applicants and 
by staff to determine if the impact on the neighborhood would be no more adverse that 
the target use of the zone. 

The 120 day timeline for this project is extremely short. The Planning Commission must 
approve or deny the application tonight (October 9, 2007) and adopt the findings tonight 
in order to allow time for a possible appeal and still meet the deadline.  

Should the Commission believe adequate information and facts are provided to approve 
the project, Staff recommends the following conditions:  

1) That all proposals of the applicant shall be conditions of approval unless 
otherwise modified here. 

2) That the total building occupancy is limited to 150 people, including staff and 
artists. Effective immediately, in no case, shall the occupancy exceed what is 
permitted under the approved building permit, even if this number is lower than 
that stated herein. Failure to maintain occupant load as posted by the Ashland Fire 
Department will result in the scheduling of a revocation of the Conditional Use 
Permit. 

3) That events with total building occupancy over 50, including staff and artists, are 
limited to 15 per month, and events with total building occupancy over 100, 
including staff and artists, are limited to 7 per month. Events shall be timed to 
coincide with shared parking agreements, always providing a parking ratio of at 
least one space per 10 people. 



 
Planning Action 2007-00250 Ashland Planning Department – Staff Report / AB 
Applicant: Aaren Glover Page   5 of 6  

4) That 15 spaces of parking are to be provided by the applicant. Two spaces are 
permitted to be on-street credits located in front of the building. The additional 13 
spaces may be shared parking spaces located within ¼ mile of the property and 
must be obtained within 90 days of the planning approval for PA2007-00250. 
Leased spaces should be in a single location. Parking agreements shall meet the 
following requirements. 

a) The agreements shall be signed, notarized, and recorded. 

b) The agreements shall be perpetual and shall run with the land. 

c) The agreements shall include times that the parking is available for use. 
These times shall match the hours of operation for the theatre use. 

d) Agreements shall include a provision providing for notice to the City of 
Ashland Planning Director if the agreements are revoked. 

e) Agreements shall provide a remedy in the case that the agreement is 
revoked. 

5) That applicants shall post signs in and around the facility regarding the shared 
parking location, and a sign at the shared parking location to inform patrons that 
the parking is available for use during events 

6) That no alcohol be served on the premises unless a Conditional Use Permit for a 
nightclub is obtained. 

7) That Friday and Saturday night events shall end no later than 1 a.m. and that 
weekday events (Sunday night through Thursday night) shall end no later than 11 
p.m. 

8) That the use shall meet City of Ashland noise ordinance requirements. Applicant 
shall provide monthly monitoring reports for noise levels at events for the first 
year of operation. If complaints are received regarding noise levels, the Planning 
Director shall have the authority to require a monitoring report prepared by a 
qualified noise consultant to demonstrate compliance. 

9) That facility doors shall be kept closed during all events. 

10) That vehicles shall not park in the alley for longer than 20 minutes and that 
vehicles shall not idle engines in the alley for more than 5 minutes. 

11) That the applicant shall provide monthly notice to neighbors within 200 feet of all 
planned events in excess of 75 people. 

12) That, during events, the applicant will provide receptacles for trash and cigarette 
butts in a visible and accessible location near the front door. 

13) That the applicant shall provide staff to patrol all areas within 200 feet of the 
premises for one hour past the end time of any event.  



 
Planning Action 2007-00250 Ashland Planning Department – Staff Report / AB 
Applicant: Aaren Glover Page   6 of 6  

14) That applicant shall provide contract firm security for all events that result in a 
total building occupancy of more than 100 people. 

15) That the applicant shall provide the City with a designated contact person to 
address compliance with conditions 

16) That the Conditional Use Permit and Variance are subject to periodic review as 
follows: 

a) That the Conditional Use Permit and Variance are subject to review by the 
Planning Commission within one year of approval. Notice shall be 
provided and conditions of approval can be modified, added, or rescinded 
based on the findings of the Planning Commission. 

b) That change of business ownership is subject to review by the City to 
verify continued compliance with the approved Conditional Use Permit. 

17) That prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy: 

a) Bicycle parking for 10 spaces shall be provided within 200 feet of the 
facility. All bicycle parking shall be installed in accordance with design 
and rack standards in 18.92.040.I and J. 

b) The street tree in the well in front of the building shall be replaced.  The 
street tree shall be chosen from the adopted Street Tree List and shall be 
installed in accordance with the specifications noted in Section E of the 
Site Design and Use Standards. The street tree shall be irrigated, and shall 
be selected and placed to comply with the vision clearance standards of 
the City of Ashland. 

















































































 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TYPE III 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 



 



 
 

Memo 

 
DATE:  October 1, 2007 
TO:  Planning Commission 
FROM: Bill Molnar, Planning Manager 
RE:  Adoption of Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) – Public Hearing  
 
 
Statement: 
 
The City of Ashland Community Development Department received a grant from the Department of 
Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) to complete an Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA).  
A public hearing to consider a recommendation to adopt the EOA as a technical report and supporting 
document within the Economy Chapter VII of Ashland’s Comprehensive Plan is scheduled before the 
Planning Commission on August 28th, 2007. 
 
The content of the Economic Opportunities Analysis is designed to meet the requirements of Oregon 
Statewide Planning Goal 9 and the administrative rule that implements Goal 9 (effective January 1, 
2007). The EOA includes an analysis of national, state, regional and county trends as well as an 
employment forecast that may be used to determine the number of needed development sites. It also 
includes a general inventory of buildable commercial, employment and industrial land in Ashland.  
 
The adoption of the EOA as a supporting document to the Economy Chapter VII of Ashland’s 
Comprehensive Plan is one of the required products identified in the grant agreement between DLCD 
and the City. The information and data included in the EOA serves as a foundation and the first step 
from which the community can move toward the establishment of a comprehensive economic 
development strategy (Council 2007-2008 goal). Additionally, technical reports and documents that 
include factual information that may be used to influence local decisions should be clearly identified 
within the local comprehensive plan. Through recognition of the EOA and other technical documents in 
the Comprehensive Plan, the general public is made aware of information that will be considered when 
evaluating and making decisions concerning local land use.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council amend the text of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The amendment would add a section at the end of the Economy Chapter VII that 
highlights the need to periodically adopt technical reports, which are consistent with Statewide Planning 
Goal 9 and that assist the City in evaluating and making land use decisions with respect to the local 
economy. Accordingly, staff would recommend that the new section specifically identify the Economic 
 
Community Development  Tel: 541-488-5305 
51 Winburn Way  Fax: 541-552-2050 
Ashland, Oregon 97520 TTY:  800-735-2900 
www.ashland.or.us 
 



 
Community Development  Tel: 541-488-5305 
51 Winburn Way  Fax: 541-552-2050 
Ashland, Oregon 97520 TTY:  800-735-2900 
www.ashland.or.us 
 

Opportunities Analysis (EOA) as a technical report and supporting document to the Economy Chapter 
VII of Ashland’s Comprehensive Plan (Attachment A). 
 
  
Background: 
 
The Guidelines for Completion of an Economic Opportunities Analysis provided by the Department of 
Land Conservation and Development states the following objective of an EOA: To identify potential 
industrial and other employment development opportunities and corresponding land needs over the next 
20 years. The guidelines identify a variety of information that must be analyzed in the EOA in order to 
estimate land demand for both the long-term (20-years) and the short term (next five years). In 
summary, the Economic Opportunities Analysis is intended to be a technical report that compares local 
demand for industrial and other employment uses to the existing land supply. The information derived 
from the Economic Opportunities Analysis may ultimately be used to assist the community to better 
implement local economic development objectives as well as to evaluate and develop supporting 
Comprehensive Plan policies. 
 
 

Oregon Court of Appeals Case 
 

The Oregon Court of Appeals recently clarified earlier court cases dealing with the need to 
incorporate technical studies into the local comprehensive plan (Attachment C). The court 
indicated that one objective of Statewide Planning Goal 2: Land Use Planning - was to assure 
that the local planning process includes an adequate factual base on which land use decisions are 
reviewed, evaluated and decided upon, and that the information be included in the 
Comprehensive Plan or referenced in supporting documents. Based on this court decision, 
Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) staff believes that Goal 2 requires 
local adoption of an Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) as part of the comprehensive plan 
in order for a community to base land use decisions upon it.  
 
The City is taking some initial steps in an effort to master plan and create a comprehensive land 
use strategy for two of its largest industrial and employment zoned properties - the Croman Mill 
site and the Railroad property. The information contained within the Economic Opportunities 
Analysis may be useful in evaluating future land use decisions and/or potential plan amendments 
involving these larger tracts of land. Consequently, Staff believes that it is important to clearly 
acknowledge the Economic Opportunities Analysis report as a supporting document within the 
Comprehensive Plan. This makes it clear to the general public that the information contained 
within the document may serve as the basis for future land use decisions that affect the local 
economy and, more specifically, the development of existing employment lands.   
 

In summary, staff requests that the Commission recommend to the City Council the adoption of the 
Economic Opportunities Analysis as a supporting document to the Economy chapter of Ashland’s 
Comprehensive Plan. The completion and recognition of the EOA within the comprehensive plan is an 
essential step in fulfilling the requirements described under Statewide Planning Goal 9 – Economy. 
Additionally, the information contained within the EOA will be useful in developing a local economic 
development strategy as recently identified as a goal of the Ashland City Council. 
 



 
Community Development  Tel: 541-488-5305 
51 Winburn Way  Fax: 541-552-2050 
Ashland, Oregon 97520 TTY:  800-735-2900 
www.ashland.or.us 
 

 
Potential Motion: 
 
Move to recommend that the City Council adopt language within the Economy Chapter VII of the 
Ashland Comprehensive Plan that recognizes the need to conduct technical studies and reports, and 
specifically identifies the Economic Opportunities Analysis as a supporting document to the Economy 
Chapter VII. 
 
Attachments:   

• Proposed amendment to Chapter 7 – Ashland Comprehensive Plan, related to the adoption of technical 
reports (Attachment A). 

• City of Ashland: Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA); prepared by ECONorthwest (Attachment 
B).  

• 1000 Friends of Oregon v. City of Dundee, 203Or App 207 (2005) (Attachment C). 
• January 23rd, 2007 Joint Study Session – packet materials (Attachment D).  

 



 

 

 
PROPOSED COMREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 

(Draft) 
 
 

Section 1; Amend Chapter 7 – The Economy. Add the following new section related to the 
recognition of technical reports adopted by reference within the Comprehensive Plan document. 
 
 
7.08 TECHNICAL REPORTS 
 
Periodically, the City may choose to conduct studies and prepare technical reports to adopt by 
reference within the Comprehensive Plan to make available for review by the general public. These 
studies and reports shall not serve the purpose of creating new city policy, but rather the 
information, data and findings contained within the documents may constitute part of the basis on 
which new policies may be formulated or existing policy amended. In addition, adopted studies and 
reports provide a source of information that may be used to assist the community in the evaluation 
of local land use decisions. 
 
The following reports are adopted by reference as part of the Economy Element of the Ashland 
Comprehensive Plan: 
 

1. City of Ashland:  Economic Opportunities Analysis. (April 2007) 



 
 
 
 
 

Findings 



 



Approval 
BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

August 14, 2007 
 

IN THE MATTER OF PLANNING ACTION #PA2007-00250, REQUEST FOR A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A THEATER USE AND A TYPE II 
VARIANCE TO PARKING FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 281 FOURTH ST 

 
APPLICANT: Aaren Glover 

 

 
) 
) FINDINGS, 
) CONCLUSIONS, 
) AND ORDERS 
) 
) 
) 
) 

RECITALS: 

1) Tax lot 101 of 39 1E 09BA is located at 281 Fourth St. and is zoned E-1; Employment, with 
Residential Overlay. 

2) The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a theater use in the Employment zone and a 
Variance to minimum parking requirements. The site plan is on file at the Department of Community 
Development. 

3) The criteria for issuance of a Conditional Use Permit are described in Chapter 18.104 as follows: 

A. That the use would be in conformance with all standards within the zoning district in which the 
use is proposed to be located, and in conformance with relevant Comprehensive plan policies 
that are not implemented by any City, State, or Federal law or program.   

B. That adequate capacity of City facilities for water, sewer, paved access to and through the 
development, electricity, urban storm drainage, and adequate transportation can and will be 
provided to and through the subject property. 

C. That the conditional use will have no greater adverse material effect on the livability of the 
impact area when compared to the development of the subject lot with the target use of the zone. 
 When   evaluating the effect of the proposed use on the impact area, the following factors of 
livability of the impact area shall be considered in relation to the target use of the zone:   
1. Similarity in scale, bulk, and coverage.   
2. Generation of traffic and effects on surrounding streets. Increases in pedestrian, bicycle, and 

mass transit use are considered beneficial regardless of capacity of facilities.  
3. Architectural compatibility with the impact area.   
4. Air quality, including the generation of dust, odors, or other environmental pollutants.   
5. Generation of noise, light, and glare.   
6. The development of adjacent properties as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan.   
7. Other factors found to be relevant by the Hearing Authority for review of the proposed use.    

3) The criteria for issuance of a Variance are described in Chapter 18.72.090 as follows: 

A. That there are unique or unusual circumstances which apply to this site which do not typically 
apply elsewhere.  

 
Findings, Conclusions and Orders 2007-00250 

281 Fourth St. 
Page 1 



 
Findings, Conclusions and Orders 2007-00250 

281 Fourth St. 
Page 2 

B. That the proposal's benefits will be greater than any negative impacts on the development of the 
adjacent uses; and will further the purpose and intent of this ordinance and the Comprehensive 
Plan of the City. (Ord.2425 S1, 1987).  

C. That the circumstances or conditions have not been willfully or purposely self-imposed. 

4) The Planning Commission, following proper public notice, held a Public Hearing on September 11, 
2007 with deliberation continued to October 9, 2007 at which time testimony was received and 
exhibits were presented. The Planning Commission approved the application, subject to conditions 
pertaining to the appropriate development of the site. 

Now, therefore, the Planning Commission of the City of Ashland finds, concludes and recommends as 
follows: 

SECTION 1. EXHIBITS 

For the purposes of reference to these Findings, the attached index of exhibits, data, and testimony will 
be used. 

Staff Exhibits lettered with an "S" 

Proponent's Exhibits, lettered with a "P" 

Opponent's Exhibits, lettered with an "O" 

Hearing Minutes, Notices, Miscellaneous Exhibits lettered with an "M" 

SECTION 2. CONCLUSORY FINDINGS 

2.1 The Planning Commission finds that it has received all information necessary to make a decision 
based on the Staff Report, public hearing testimony and the exhibits received. 

2.2 The Planning Commission finds that based on the applicant’s proposals to provide additional 
security, reduce noise through measures addressed in the conditions, and limit the size and hours of 
events as stated in the conditions, the theater use would have no greater impact on the neighborhood that 
would the target use of the zone. Additionally, the impact shall be mitigated by the provision of bicycle 
parking, trash receptacles, and notice to neighbors.  

2.3 The Planning Commission finds that the theater’s location in the Railroad Historic District 
constitutes a unique situation over which is not self imposed. Additionally, the Planning Commission 
finds that with the provision of shared parking, that the benefits of the proposal will be greater than the 
negative impacts. 

SECTION 3. DECISION 

3.1 Based on the record of the Public Hearing on this matter, the Planning Commission concludes 
that the application for a Conditional Use Permit for a theater use in the Employment zone and a 
Variance to minimum parking requirements has satisfied all relative substantive standards and criteria 
and is supported by evidence in the record.  



Therefore, based on our overall conclusions, and upon the proposal being subject to each of the 
following conditions, we approve Planning Action #2007-00250. Further, if any one or more of the 
conditions below are found to be invalid, for any reason whatsoever, then Planning Action #2007-00250 
is denied. The following are the conditions and they are attached to the approval: 

1) That all proposals of the applicant shall be conditions of approval unless otherwise modified 
here. 

2) That the total building occupancy is limited to 150 people, including staff and artists. Effective 
immediately, in no case, shall the occupancy exceed what is permitted under the approved 
building permit, even if this number is lower than that stated herein. Failure to maintain occupant 
load as posted by the Ashland Fire Department will result in the scheduling of a revocation of 
the Conditional Use Permit. 

3) That events with total building occupancy over 50, including staff and artists, are limited to 15 
per month, and events with total building occupancy over 100, including staff and artists, are 
limited to 7 per month. Events shall be timed to coincide with shared parking agreements, always 
providing a parking ratio of at least one space per 10 people. 

4) That 15 spaces of parking are to be provided by the applicant. Two spaces are permitted to be 
on-street credits located in front of the building. The additional 13 spaces may be shared parking 
spaces located within ¼ mile of the property and must be obtained within 90 days of the 
planning approval for PA2007-00250. Leased spaces should be in a single location. Parking 
agreements shall meet the following requirements. 

a) The agreements shall be signed, notarized, and recorded. 

b) The agreements shall be perpetual and shall run with the land. 

c) The agreements shall include times that the parking is available for use. These times shall 
match the hours of operation for the theatre use. 

d) Agreements shall include a provision providing for notice to the City of Ashland 
Planning Director if the agreements are revoked. 

e) Agreements shall provide a remedy in the case that the agreement is revoked. 

5) That applicants shall post signs in and around the facility regarding the shared parking location, 
and a sign at the shared parking location to inform patrons that the parking is available for use 
during events 

6) That no alcohol be served on the premises unless a Conditional Use Permit for a nightclub is 
obtained.  Catered events serving alcohol are permitted. 

7) That Friday and Saturday night events shall end no later than 1 a.m. and that weekday events 
(Sunday night through Thursday night) shall end no later than 11 p.m. 

8) That the use shall meet City of Ashland noise ordinance requirements. Applicant shall provide 
monthly monitoring reports for noise levels at events for the first year of operation. If complaints 

 
Findings, Conclusions and Orders 2007-00250 

281 Fourth St. 
Page 3 



are received regarding noise levels, the Planning Director shall have the authority to require a 
monitoring report prepared by a qualified noise consultant to demonstrate compliance. 

9) That facility doors shall be kept closed during all events. 

10) That vehicles shall not park in the alley for longer than 20 minutes and that vehicles shall not 
idle engines in the alley for more than 5 minutes. 

11) That the applicant shall provide monthly notice to neighbors within 200 feet of all planned 
events in excess of 75 people. 

12) That, during events, the applicant will provide receptacles for trash and cigarette butts in a 
visible and accessible location near the front door. 

13) That the applicant shall provide staff to patrol all areas within 200 feet of the premises for one 
hour past the end time of any event.  

14) That applicant shall provide contract firm security for all events that result in a total building 
occupancy of more than 100 people. 

15) That the applicant shall provide the City with a designated contact person to address compliance 
with conditions 

16) That the Conditional Use Permit and Variance are subject to periodic review as follows: 

a) That the Conditional Use Permit and Variance are subject to review by the Planning 
Commission within one year of approval. Notice shall be provided and conditions of 
approval can be modified, added, or rescinded based on the findings of the Planning 
Commission. 

b) That change of business ownership is subject to review by the City to verify continued 
compliance with the approved Conditional Use Permit. 

17) That prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy: 

a) Bicycle parking for 10 spaces shall be provided within 200 feet of the facility. All bicycle 
parking shall be installed in accordance with design and rack standards in 18.92.040.I and 
J. 

b) The street tree in the well in front of the building shall be replaced.  The street tree shall 
be chosen from the adopted Street Tree List and shall be installed in accordance with the 
specifications noted in Section E of the Site Design and Use Standards. The street tree 
shall be irrigated, and shall be selected and placed to comply with the vision clearance 
standards of the City of Ashland. 

 

 

 

 
Findings, Conclusions and Orders 2007-00250 

281 Fourth St. 
Page 4 



 
 
 

____________________________ ___________ 
Planning Commission Approval Date 

 
Findings, Conclusions and Orders 2007-00250 

281 Fourth St. 
Page 5 



 



Denial 
BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

October 9, 2007 
 

IN THE MATTER OF PLANNING ACTION #PA2007-00250, REQUEST FOR A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A THEATER USE AND A TYPE II 
VARIANCE TO PARKING FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 281 FOURTH ST 

 
APPLICANT: Aaren Glover 

 

 
) 
) FINDINGS, 
) CONCLUSIONS, 
) AND ORDERS 
) 
) 
) 
) 

RECITALS: 

1) Tax lot 101 of 39 1E 09BA is located at 281 Fourth St. and is zoned E-1; Employment, with 
Residential Overlay. 

2) The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a theater use in the Employment zone and a 
Variance to minimum parking requirements. The site plan is on file at the Department of Community 
Development. 

3) The criteria for issuance of a Conditional Use Permit are described in Chapter 18.104 as follows: 

A. That the use would be in conformance with all standards within the zoning district in which the 
use is proposed to be located, and in conformance with relevant Comprehensive plan policies 
that are not implemented by any City, State, or Federal law or program.   

B. That adequate capacity of City facilities for water, sewer, paved access to and through the 
development, electricity, urban storm drainage, and adequate transportation can and will be 
provided to and through the subject property. 

C. That the conditional use will have no greater adverse material effect on the livability of the 
impact area when compared to the development of the subject lot with the target use of the zone. 
 When   evaluating the effect of the proposed use on the impact area, the following factors of 
livability of the impact area shall be considered in relation to the target use of the zone:   
1. Similarity in scale, bulk, and coverage.   
2. Generation of traffic and effects on surrounding streets. Increases in pedestrian, bicycle, and 

mass transit use are considered beneficial regardless of capacity of facilities.  
3. Architectural compatibility with the impact area.   
4. Air quality, including the generation of dust, odors, or other environmental pollutants.   
5. Generation of noise, light, and glare.   
6. The development of adjacent properties as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan.   
7. Other factors found to be relevant by the Hearing Authority for review of the proposed use.    

3) The criteria for issuance of a Variance are described in Chapter 18.72.090 as follows: 

A. That there are unique or unusual circumstances which apply to this site which do not typically 
apply elsewhere.  

 
Findings, Conclusions and Orders 2007-00250 

281 Fourth St. 
Page 1 



 
Findings, Conclusions and Orders 2007-00250 

281 Fourth St. 
Page 2 

B. That the proposal's benefits will be greater than any negative impacts on the development of the 
adjacent uses; and will further the purpose and intent of this ordinance and the Comprehensive 
Plan of the City. (Ord.2425 S1, 1987).  

C. That the circumstances or conditions have not been willfully or purposely self-imposed. 

4) The Planning Commission, following proper public notice, held a Public Hearing on September 11, 
2007 with deliberation continued to October 9, 2007 at which time testimony was received and 
exhibits were presented. The Planning Commission denied the application. 

Now, therefore, the Planning Commission of the City of Ashland finds, concludes and recommends as 
follows: 

SECTION 1. EXHIBITS 

For the purposes of reference to these Findings, the attached index of exhibits, data, and testimony will 
be used. 

Staff Exhibits lettered with an "S" 

Proponent's Exhibits, lettered with a "P" 

Opponent's Exhibits, lettered with an "O" 

Hearing Minutes, Notices, Miscellaneous Exhibits lettered with an "M" 

SECTION 2. CONCLUSORY FINDINGS 

2.1 The Planning Commission finds that it has received all information necessary to make a decision 
based on the Staff Report, public hearing testimony and the exhibits received. 

2.2 The Planning Commission finds that the project fails to comply with all relevant approval 
criteria described in AMC Conditional Use Permits chapter 18.100.050 and Variance chapter 18.72.090. 

SECTION 3. DECISION 

3.1 Based on the record of the Public Hearing on this matter, the Planning Commission concludes 
that the application for a Conditional Use Permit for a theater use in the Employment zone and a 
Variance to minimum parking requirements is not supported by evidence contained within the whole 
record, and therefore fails to comply with the required burden of proof.  

Therefore, based on our overall conclusions, the Commission finds and concludes that the application 
does not comply with all relevant approval criteria. Consequently, the Commission denies Planning 
Action #2007-00250.  

 
 
 
 

____________________________ ___________ 
Planning Commission Approval Date 



PA 2007-00980 
August 14, 2007 

Page 1 

 
BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 August 14, 2007 
 
                                                                             
    IN THE MATTER OF PLANNING ACTION #2007-00980, REQUEST FOR                  ) 
    A LAND PARTITION TO CREATE TWO PARCELS INCLUDING ONE FLAG LOT ) FINDINGS,    
    FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF    ) CONCLUSIONS 
    STRAWBERRY LANE AND WESTWOOD STREET.       ) AND ORDERS   
                      ) 
    APPLICANT:  City of Ashland ) 
    --------------------------------------------------------   
    RECITALS: 
               

1) Tax lot 102 of 39 1E 08BD is located at near the intersection of Strawberry Lane and Westwood 
Street and is zoned RR.5; Rural Residential.   
 

 2)  The applicant is requesting a land partition to create two lots from an existing parcel. The preliminary 
plat and site improvements are outlined on the plans on file at the Department of Community Development. 

 
 3)   The criteria for Land Partition approval are described in Chapter 18.76 as follows: 
 

A. The future use for urban purposes of the remainder of the tract will not be impeded. 
B. The development of the remainder of any adjoining land or access thereto will not be 

impeded. 
C. The tract of land has not been partitioned for 12 months. 
D. The partitioning is not in conflict with any law, ordinance or resolution applicable to the 

land. 
E. The partitioning is in accordance with the design and street standards contained in the 

Chapter on Subdivisions. 
F. When there exists adequate public facilities, or proof that such facilities can be provided, 

as determined by the Public Works Director and specified by City documents, for water, 
sanitary sewers, storm sewer, and electricity. 

G. When there exists a 20-foot wide access along the entire street frontage of the parcel to 
the nearest fully improved collector or arterial street, as designated in the Comprehensive 
Plan.  Such access shall be improved with an asphaltic concrete pavement designed for 
the use of the proposed street.  The minimum width of the street shall be 20-feet with all 
work done under permit of the Public Works Department. 
1. The Public Works Director may allow an unpaved street for access for a minor 

land partition when all of the following conditions exist: 
a. The unpaved street is at least 20-feet wide to the nearest fully improved 

collector or arterial street. 
b. The centerline grade on any portion of the unpaved street does not exceed 

ten percent. 



PA 2007-00980 
August 14, 2007 

Page 2 

2. Should the partition be on an unpaved street and paving is not required, the 
applicant shall agree to participate in the costs and to waive the rights of the 
owner of the subject property to remonstrate both with respect to the owners 
agreeing to participate in the cost of full street improvements and to not 
remonstrate to the formation of a local improvement district to cover such 
improvements and costs thereof.  Full street improvements shall include paving, 
curb, gutter, sidewalks and the undergrounding of utilities.  This requirement shall 
be precedent to the signing of the final survey plat, and if the owner declines to so 
agree, then the application shall be denied. 

H. Where an alley exists adjacent to the partition, access may be required to be provided 
from the alley and prohibited from the street. 

 
Further, the criteria for Flag Partition approval are described in Chapter 18.76 as follows: 
 

A. Conditions of the previous section have been met. 
 
B. Except as provided in subsection 18.76.060.K, the flag drive for one flag lot shall have a 

minimum width of 15 feet, and a 12 foot paved driving surface.  For drives serving two lots, 
the flag drive shall be 20 feet wide, with 15 feet of driving surface to the back of the first lot, 
and 12 feet, respectively, for the rear lot.  Drives shared by adjacent properties shall have a 
width of 20 feet, with a 15 foot paved driving surface.   

 
Flag drives shall be constructed so as to prevent surface drainage from flowing over 
sidewalks or other public ways.  Flag drives shall be in the same ownership as the flag lots 
served.  Where two or more lots are served by the same flag drive, the flag drive shall be 
owned by one of the lots and an easement for access shall be granted to the other lot or lots.  
There shall be no parking 10 feet on either side of the flag drive entrance. 

 
Flag drive grades shall not exceed a maximum grade of 15%.  Variances may be granted for 
flag drives for grades in excess of 15% but no greater than 18% for no more than 200'.  Such 
variances shall be required to meet all of the criteria for approval as found in 18.100. 

 
Flag drives serving structures greater than 24 feet in height, as defined in 18.08.290, shall 
provide a Fire Work Area of 20 feet by 40 feet within 50 feet of the structure.  The Fire Work 
Area requirement shall be waived if the structure served by the drive has an approved 
automatic sprinkler system installed. 

 
Flag drives and fire work areas shall be deemed Fire Apparatus Access Roads under the 
Uniform Fire Code and subject to all requirements thereof. 

 
Flag drives greater than 250 feet in length shall provide a turnaround as defined in the 
Performance Standards Guidelines in 18.88.090. 
 



PA 2007-00980 
August 14, 2007 

Page 3 

C. Each flag lot has at least three parking spaces situated in such a manner as to eliminate the 
necessity for backing out. 

D. Curb cuts have been minimized, where possible, through the use of common driveways. 
 
E. Both sides of the flag drive have been screened with a site-obscuring fence, wall or evergreen 

hedge to a height of from four to six feet, except in the front yard setback area where, starting 
five feet from the property line, the height shall be from 30 to 42 inches in the remaining 
setback area.  Such fence or landscaping shall be placed at the extreme outside of the flag 
drive in order to ensure adequate fire access. 

 
F. The applicant has executed and filed with the Planning Director an agreement between 

applicant and the city for paving and screening of the flag drive.  Such an agreement shall 
specify the period within which the applicant, or agent for applicant, or contractor shall 
complete the paving to standards as specified by the Director of Public Works and screening 
as required by this section, and providing that if applicant should fail to complete such work 
within such period, the City may complete the same and recover the full cost and expense 
thereof from the applicant.  An agreement shall also provide for the maintenance of the 
paving and screening to standards as indicated in this section and the assurance that such 
maintenance shall be continued. 

 
G. A site plan has been approved by the Planning Commission.  The site plan shall be approved 

provided the regulations of the zoning and subdivision titles are satisfied.  Such a site plan 
shall contain the map requirements listed in Section 18.76.050 and the following information: 
1. The location of driveways, turnarounds parking spaces and useable yard areas. 
2. The location and type of screening. 
3. For site plans of a flag lot, the building envelope shall be identified. 
 

H. No more than two lots are served by the flag drive. 
 
I. For the purpose of meeting the minimum lot area requirement, the lot area, exclusive of the 

flag drive area, must meet the minimum square footage requirements of the zoning district. 
 
J. Flag lots shall be required to provide a useable yard area that has a minimal dimension of 20 

feet wide by 20 feet deep.  As used in this chapter, the term "useable yard area" means a 
private yard area which is unobstructed by a structure or automobile from the ground 
upward. 

 
K. Flag lots adjacent to an alley shall meet all of the requirements of this section, except that: 

1. Vehicle access shall be from the alley only where required as a condition of approval; 
2. No screening and paving requirements shall be required for the flagpole; 
3. A four foot pedestrian path shall be installed within the flag pole, improved and 

maintained with either a concrete, asphalt, brick, or paver block surface from the street to 
the buildable area of the flag lot; 



PA 2007-00980 
August 14, 2007 

Page 4 

4. The flag pole width shall be no less than eight feet wide and the entrance of the pole at 
the street shall be identified by the address of the flaglot clearly visible from the street on 
a 4" X 4" post 3½ feet high.  The post shall be painted white with black numbers 3 inches 
high running vertically down the front of the post.  For flagpoles serving two or more 
dwellings, the addresses of such dwellings shall be on a two feet by three feet white sign 
clearly visible from the street with three inch black numbers.  

 
 4)  The Planning Commission, following proper public notice, held a Public Hearing on August 14, 2007 at 

which time testimony was received and exhibits were presented. The Planning Commission approved the 
application subject to conditions pertaining to the appropriate development of the site.  

     
 Now, therefore, the Planning Commission of the City of Ashland finds, concludes and recommends as 

follows: 
 
    SECTION 1. EXHIBITS 
       
  For the purposes of reference to these Findings, the attached index of exhibits, data, and testimony 

will be used. 
 
  Staff Exhibits lettered with an "S" 
 
  Proponent's Exhibits, lettered with a "P" 
 
  Opponent's Exhibits, lettered with an "O" 
 
  Hearing Minutes, Notices, Miscellaneous Exhibits lettered with an "M" 
  
    SECTION 2. CONCLUSORY FINDINGS 
 

2.1 The Planning Commission finds that it has received all information necessary to make a decision 
based on the Staff Report, public hearing testimony and the exhibits received. 
 
2.2 The Planning Commission finds that the proposed parcels meet the minimum lot size and dimension 
requirements.  The property contains 1.05 acres (45,738 square feet) and is located near the corner of 
Strawberry Lane and Westwood Street, on the east side of Westwood.   The property is rectangular, with 
139 feet of frontage on Westwood Street and is 330.01 feet deep.  The site is vacant of structures. Proposed 
Lot 1 will contain 21,810 square feet and proposed Lot 2, will contain 21,961 square feet.  Both parcels 
conform to the minimum size requirement of ½-acre or 21,780 square foot lot size in the Rural Residential 
(RR.5) zone.  Additionally, the proposed building envelopes for the new homes meet the setback and lot 
coverage requirements of the RR.5 zoning district. 
 
2.3 The Planning Commission finds that public facilities including water, sanitary sewer, storm 
drainage, electric and transportation are in place and have adequate capacity to serve the two new vacant 
parcels. Public utilities including water, sanitary sewer, and electric are provided from the Westwood Street 



PA 2007-00980 
August 14, 2007 

Page 5 

right-of-way.  The applicants propose an electric vault to upgrade the available electric service to serve one 
of the new parcels and future developments to the north.  Fire hydrants exist on the west side of Westwood 
Street and near the 23.5 foot road easement on Tax Lot 104 to the south of the proposed flag Lot 2.  
Vehicular access to Lots 1 and 2 is from Westwood Street.  

 
2.4 The Planning Commission finds that the flag drive to serve Lot 2 will be paved and meets the width 
and grade requirements of Chapter 18.76.  Three off-street parking spaces will be provided the parcel on 
Lot 2 as required by the approval criteria.  Additionally, a vehicle turnaround will be provided so that cars 
can exit the driveway onto Westwood Street in a forward manner. 

 
2.5  The Planning Commission finds that the proposal meets all applicable criteria for a Land Partition 
and Flag Partition described in the Partitions Chapter 18.76.  

   
 
    SECTION 3. DECISION 
 
 3.1  Based on the record of the Public Hearing on this matter, the Planning Commission concludes that the 

proposal to create a land partition to create two lots, is supported by evidence contained within the record. 
 
 Therefore, based on our overall conclusions, and upon the proposal being subject to each of the following 

conditions, we approve Planning Action #2007-00980.  Further, if any one or more of the conditions below 
are found to be invalid, for any reason whatsoever, then Planning Action #2007-00980 is denied. The 
following are the conditions and they are attached to the approval: 

 
1) That all proposals of the applicant shall be conditions of approval unless otherwise modified here. 
 
2) That prior to signature of survey plat: 
 
 a)  That a final survey plat shall be submitted to the City within 12 months of this approval. 
 
 b) That all easements for public utilities, all reciprocal utility, maintenance and access shall be indicated 

on the final survey plat as required by the Ashland Engineering Division. 
 
 c) That a final utility plan for the parcels shall be submitted for review and approval by the Engineering 

Division and Building Divisions prior to signature of the final survey plat.  The utility plan shall 
include the location of connections to all public facilities including the locations of water lines and 
meter sizes, fire hydrants, sanitary sewer lines, storm drain lines and electric services.  

 
 d) That the electric vault to service Lot 1 shall be installed in accordance with the requirements of the 

Ashland Electric Department prior to signature of final survey plat.  
 

e) The electric service plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Ashland Electric Department prior to 
signature of the final survey plat. 

 



PA 2007-00980 
August 14, 2007 

Page 6 

 f) That the sanitary sewer laterals and water services including connection with meters at the street shall 
be installed for both parcels prior to the signature of final survey plat.  
All work shall be completed under review and approval of the Ashland Engineering Department prior 
to signature of the final survey plat.  

 
 
3) That building permit submittals shall include: 
 

a) That three off-street parking spaces for Lot 2 shall be delineated on the building permit submittals.  
 
b) That solar setback calculation shall be submitted with the building permit submittals demonstrating 

compliance with Standard A Solar Setback.  
 

 c) That the flag lots shall have a usable yard area, as defined in 18.76.060.J, that has a minimal dimension 
of 20 feet wide by 20 feet deep.  The usable yard area shall be identified on the building permit 
submittals. 

 
 d) That three off-street parking spaces situated in a manner as to eliminate the necessity for backing out 

shall be provided on the vacant flag lot (Lot 2).  The parking spaces shall be identified on the building 
permit submittals.  

 
 e) That individual lot coverage shall not exceed 20% of the total lot area in accordance with 18.16.040.B.1. 

Lot coverage calculations including all impervious surfaces shall be submitted with the building permits. 
 
 f) That the plans submitted for building permit shall comply with the recorded deed restrictions submitted 

as Exhibit G.  
 
 
4) That prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy: 

a) That the electric service shall be installed underground to service the parcels as required by the Ashland 
Electric Department prior to issuance of the certificate of occupancy.   

 
b) That the flag drive shall be installed prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy for Lot 2.  The flag 

drive shall be constructed so as to prevent surface drainage from flowing over the sidewalk or public 
way in accordance with 18.76.060.B.  The flag drive shall be screened with a site-obscuring fence, wall 
or evergreen hedge in accordance with 18.76.060.E. 

 
c) That no obstructions including landscaping and structures greater than two and one half feet high 

including landscaping, signage or structures, shall be placed in the vision clearance areas adjacent to the 
driveway in accordance with 18.92.070.D. 

 
 d) That 4 street trees, 1 per 30 feet of street frontage, shall be installed on the Westwood Street frontage 

prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the Lot 1.  All street trees shall be chosen from the 



PA 2007-00980 
August 14, 2007 

Page 7 

adopted Street Tree List and shall be installed in accordance with the specifications noted in Section E 
of the Site Design and Use Standards.  The street trees shall be irrigated. 
 

  
 
 

 
 ____________________________                             ___________ 
 Planning Commission Approval                                    Date      
 
          
   
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
   
 
 
                                                                          
 



 














	ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION
	A. PLANNING ACTION:  2007-01209
	SUBJECT PROPERTY: 1160 Bellview  
	OWNER/APPLICANT:   Jack & Mary Kyman / Richard Wagner
	DESCRIPTION:   A request for a Conditional Use Permit to expand an existing non-conforming garage by 13.5 square feet within 2 feet of the east property line. 
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION:  Single-Family Residential ZONING: R 1 7.5; ASSESSOR’S MAP #: 39 1E 014CC; TAX LOT: 3000
	IV. TYPE II PUBLIC HEARINGS
	281Fourth.pdf
	281Fourth_newinfo.pdf
	I. Relevant Facts
	A. Background - History of Application

	II. Project Impact
	A. Conditional Use Permit
	1. Alcohol Service
	2. Hours of Operation
	3. Number of patrons
	4. Monitoring of Noise

	B. Variance

	III. Procedural - Required Burden of Proof
	IV. Conclusions and Recommendations


	10_9_07Planning Commission Agenda.pdf
	A.  PLANNING ACTION:  PA-2007-00250
	SUBJECT PROPERTY: 281 Fourth St
	OWNER/APPLICANT:  Aaron Glover
	A.   PLANNING ACTION:  PA-2007-00980
	SUBJECT PROPERTY: Westwood/Strawberry 391E 08BD TaxLot #102
	OWNER/APPLICANT: City of Ashland

	8-14-2007 Hearings Board Minutes_draft2.pdf
	 
	ASHLAND PLANNING COMMISSION
	A. PLANNING ACTION:  2007-01209
	SUBJECT PROPERTY: 1160 Bellview  
	OWNER/APPLICANT:   Jack & Mary Kyman / Richard Wagner
	DESCRIPTION:   A request for a Conditional Use Permit to expand an existing non-conforming garage by 13.5 square feet within 2 feet of the east property line. 
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION:  Single-Family Residential ZONING: R 1 7.5; ASSESSOR’S MAP #: 39 1E 014CC; TAX LOT: 3000
	IV. TYPE II PUBLIC HEARINGS




